
Gloucestershire Schools Forum

Thursday 19 September 2019 at 2.00 pm until 
4.00pm

Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester



    



    

Gloucestershire Schools Forum
Thursday 19 September 2019

at 2.00 pm until 4.00 pm

Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE Joanne Bolton

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members of the Forum must declare an interest in any agenda item where 
the outcome may give them a direct pecuniary advantage or avoid a 
disadvantage.  A form is available at the back of the meeting room.

Joanne Bolton

3  PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

To receive any public questions.  Questions can be asked on the day or 
sent to the Clerk before the meeting.  A written answer will be provided if 
questions are received 3 clear working days before the date of the 
meeting.  The Chairman will advise timescale for any questions asked on 
the day of the meeting or received less than 3 working days before the 
meeting.

Joanne Bolton

4  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 14)

To agree the minutes of the meeting held on 20 June 2019 and note 
actions.

Joanne Bolton

5  GOVERNMENT EDUCATION FUNDING SPENDING REVIEW 

To receive a verbal update.  

Philip Haslett

6  SCHOOL FUNDING 2020/21 (Pages 15 - 28) Philip Haslett, 
Neil Egles

7  HIGH NEEDS (Pages 29 - 34) Philip Haslett

8  EDUCATION CAPITAL (Pages 35 - 38) Gareth Vine

(a) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect Minutes or 
Reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact:
Joanne Bolton, Clerk to the Forum
:01452 324197/e-mail: joanne.bolton@gloucestershire.gov.uk 

mailto:joanne.bolton@gloucestershire.gov.uk


    

(b) GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS
1 Will Members please sign the attendance list.



1

 GLOUCESTERSHIRE SCHOOLS FORUM
Minutes of a meeting held on Thursday 20 June 2019

in the Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester.

Present:

Brian Bartlett - Primary School Governors (Maintained)
Colin Belford - Secondary School Headteachers (Maintained)
Elisa Entwistle - Alternative Provision Schools
Andrew Harris - Community Representative
Kirsten Harrison - Secondary School Headteachers (Academy)
Amanda Horniman - Early Years Providers
Lisa Jones - Primary School Headteachers (Maintained)
David Metcalf - Primary School Headteachers (Maintained)
Will Morgan - Secondary School Headteachers (Academy)
Alexander Norman - Secondary School Governors (Academy)
Jacqui Phillips - Secondary School Governors (Academy)
Steve Savory - Primary School Headteachers (Academy)
Clare Steel - Special School Headteachers 
Adam White - Secondary School Governors (Maintained)
Observers: Cllr Richard Boyles, Cabinet Member for Children’s Safeguarding 

and Early Years
Cllr Patrick Molyneux, Cabinet Member: Economy, Education and 
Skills

Officers: Chris Spencer, Director of Children’s Services
Tim Browne, Director of Education
Philip Haslett, Head of Education Strategy and
Development
Neil Egles, Finance Manager, Schools Strategy and Capital
Suzanne Hall, Finance Business Partner
Joanne Bolton, Democratic Services Adviser and Clerk to the
Forum.

Apologies: Matthew Bishop, Primary School Governors (Maintained)
Sara Byrne, Primary School Governors (Maintained)
Penny Chislett, Post-16 Education 
Peter Hales, Primary School Governors (Academy)
Kate Hawkins, Special School Governors 
Rachel Howie, Gloucester Diocese
Dan Johnson, Primary School Headteachers (Maintained)
Liam Jordan, Clifton Diocese
Gwyneth Keen, Early Years Providers
Sarah Murphy, Trade Unions

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

2 

Rob Wilcock, Secondary School Headteachers (Academy)
Stuart Wilson, Secondary Head Teachers (Academy)

10. ELECTION OF THE SCHOOLS FORUM CHAIR 

10.1 Philip Haslett, Head of Education Strategy and Development, explained that Forum 
members had received correspondence from the clerk outlining the proposal for 
Andrew Harris, the recently retired headteacher, and former member of the Schools 
Forum, to return as a member of the Forum and be elected as the Forum’s Chair. 

10.2 The Forum considered the proposal and members expressed their support for 
Andrew Harris becoming the Schools Forum  Chair.  There were no other 
nominations.  Andrew Harris was therefore duly elected as the Schools Forum 
Chair for a two year term of office.

(At this juncture there was a brief adjournment whilst Andrew Harris was informed 
of the Forum’s decision; he then subsequently joined the meeting.)

11. ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE CONSTITUTION 

11.1 Joanne Bolton, Clerk to the Schools Forum, outlined the amendment that would 
need to be made to the Constitution to reflect the appointment of Andrew Harris as 
a community representative.  The Forum agreed to amend its membership structure 
(paragraph 1 of the Constitution), to include one additional non-schools member ‘a 
community representative’.
ACTION: Joanne Bolton

11.2 No other changes were proposed as part of the Annual Review.

11.3 A member questioned whether an addition should be made to paragraph 1 in the 
Constitution, to outline that there should be at least one member on the Forum who 
was a representative of the headteachers of academies, as well as maintained 
schools.  It was agreed that the clerk would look into this and report back. 
ACTION: Joanne Bolton

12. ELECTION OF THE VICE CHAIR 

Steve Savory, Primary Headteacher (Academy) representative, was duly elected as 
the Schools Forum Vice Chair for a two year term of office.

13. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were made.

14. PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

No public questions had been received.

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

3 

15. MINUTES 

15.1 The minutes of the previous meeting held on 10 January 2019, were approved as a 
correct record and signed by the Chair. 

15.2 Clare Steel, Special School Headteacher representative, referred to an action from 
the previous meeting and explained that clarification was needed on the number of 
children who had been allocated a special school place in the next academic year.  
It was agreed that the Head of SEND would make contact with Clare Steel to 
discuss this.
ACTION: Philip Haslett

15.3 Elisa Entwistle, Alternative Provision Schools representative, asked officers to 
provide further clarification on the plans for the pupils, whose named special school 
in their Education Health and Care Plan (EHCP) was oversubscribed.  
ACTION: Philip Haslett

16. OUTTURN AND MAINTAINED SCHOOL BALANCES 2018/19 

16.1 Neil Egles, Finance Manager – Schools Strategy and Capital, introduced the report 
which outlined the 2018/19 in-year outturn position for the Dedicated Schools Grant 
(DSG) and non-DSG, and the maintained school balances at the end of 2018/19.

16.2 He explained that the overall 2018/19 DSG outturn position was a net in-year 
overspend of £2.810M representing 0.6% of the 2018/19 DSG budget.  A further 
£1.993M of balances were remaining from 2017/18 resulting in an overall DSG 
deficit balance at the end of 2018/19 being £0.817M, equivalent to 0.2% of the 
£451.072M 2018/19 DSG.

16.3 The Forum agreed that the DSG deficit be earmarked at the end of 2018/19, as 
outlined in the report, and carried forward to 2019/20.

16.4 It was also reported that in Gloucestershire 185 maintained schools were in surplus 
and 22 in deficit of which 123 (61%) held revenue balances at the end of 2018/19 
above the claw back thresholds (5% of ISB Secondary/8% of ISB Primary).  The 
excess amount above the thresholds represented £6.4M (42%) of the total £15.0M 
mainstream revenue balances held.  This was a £1.9M increase in the amount of 
excess balances that were held at the end of 2017/18.

16.5 The Forum acknowledged that excess funds could be retained above the 
thresholds when they had been committed in accordance with any of the permitted 
reasons as outlined in the report.  Members recognised that it would be a complex 
and substantial piece of work to challenge every commitment identified by the 123 
schools and they were therefore satisfied that challenge of schools with the biggest 
surpluses by the Deficit Officer Group continued to be the most effective approach.

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

4 

16.6 It was reported that the Council’s Deficit Officer Group was in the process of 
reviewing the plans of maintained schools holding surplus balances relating to the 
financial year 2018/19.  Schools with the largest balances had been asked to 
provide the reasons for their surplus and their plans for future expenditure.  The 
Deficit Officer Group would then work with the headteachers and school business 
managers to advise each school on the appropriate action to use their surplus 
where appropriate. A member emphasised the importance of involving the school 
governors in those discussions.  It was therefore agreed that officers would ensure 
that the Deficit Officer Group undertook to involve the governors in their discussions 
with the schools.
ACTION: Philip Haslett 

16.7 Cllr Patrick Molyneux, Cabinet Member: Economy, Education and Skills; and Cllr 
Richard Boyles, Cabinet Member – Children’s Safeguarding and Early Years, made 
reference to the overall surplus amount above claw back thresholds of £6.4M, and 
the high amount of surplus being held by some individual schools. The point was 
made that the overall amount of surplus could be perceived as undermining the 
argument that education was underfunded.  Cllr Molyneux stressed that ultimately 
the revenue funding should be spent on educating the children.   Schools should be 
cautious about holding onto a high surplus, and be able to demonstrate valid 
reasons as to why the funds were being held back; budgets may need to be 
organised more effectively.

16.8 A member made reference to the local authority’s proposal, considered by the 
Forum at its meeting in November last year, which was to make a percentage 
funding transfer from the Schools block to the High Needs block, to address the 
2019/20 shortfall.  He then challenged the proposal to not implement claw back, 
given that there was such huge pressure on the High Needs block.  He emphasised 
that the overall budget needed to be considered.  He suggested that clawed back 
surplus funds would be better used to support the High Needs block of the DSG.

16.9 After debating the claw back option, the Forum agreed that no claw back should be 
applied to maintained school balances at the end of the 2018/19 financial year.  
The Forum recognised that the best method of reviewing excess surplus, continued 
to be through the work of the Council’s Deficit Officer Group. 

16.10 The Forum agreed however, that if funds were ever clawed back in the future a 
better use would be to support the High Needs block of the DSG.  The Finance 
Manager explained that the DfE had previously indicated that if any funds were 
clawed back from mainstream schools the funds could only be used by adding them 
to the following years Schools block for allocating through the formula to all schools 
and academies. The local authority and the Forum had previously indicated that 
they would not want to do that as it could result in some funds being allocated back 
to those it was clawed back from and would also risk one off funding being locked in 
permanently due to the Minimum Funding Guarantee. The Finance Manager 
explained that it was a number of years ago that the DfE advised that so it might be 
worth asking the question again to see if the ESFA would now allow any clawed 
back funds to be used for High Needs with the Forum’s approval. 

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

5 

16.11 Officers were therefore asked to seek clarification from the ESFA, on how any 
clawed back surplus funds were allowed to be used and to ascertain if it was 
permissible (in future budget setting rounds) for any schools balances clawed back 
from mainstream schools, to be used in the High Needs block.
ACTION: Neil Egles

16.12 The Forum heard that a total of 14 out of the 25 schools which were projecting a 
deficit had actually ended the year in a deficit position.  However, an additional 7 
schools which were not projecting a deficit at the beginning of the year ended the 
year in a deficit position.  Lisa Jones, Primary (Maintained) Headteacher 
representative, indicated that some primary schools were already looking at deficit 
budgets for the first time.  It was agreed that further information on the budget 
deficits in maintained schools would be shared with the Forum once the data 
analysis had been completed.  
ACTION: Philip Haslett

16.13 The Forum noted the summary from the Deficit Officer Group as outlined in the 
report.  It was explained that the Deficit Officer Group was anticipating an increase 
in deficit budget submissions in 2019/20, as added pressure on school budgets 
continued to grow.

16.14 The Forum noted that the outturn position for non-DSG funded services was an 
over-spend position of £8.67M (8.29% of the budget).   Over the last few years 
there had been a sustained increase in demand for social care including children 
coming into care, causing significant pressures and over-spends within children’s 
services.

17. HIGH NEEDS 

17.1 Philip Haslett, Head of Education Strategy and Development, introduced the report 
which outlined the High Needs outturn for 2018/19 and the 2019/20 budget; and 
provided an update on the High Needs Strategy and associated activities.

17.2 The Head of Education Strategy and Development gave a presentation on High 
Needs.  (For information: a copy of the presentation has been uploaded to the 
Council’s website and is included in the signed copy of the minute book.)  He 
explained that the High Needs budget deficit at the end of 2018/19 was £2.884M.  
The Chair pointed out that this was significantly worse than the forecast overspend 
of £0.516M which was made at the beginning of 2018; the reasons why there had 
been a marked increase needed to be addressed.

17.3 The Forum was informed that the significant overspend in 2018/19 was driven by 
increased demand for places in Alternative Provision, out of county spend 
(Independent special schools), special school provision, and also EHCP costs in 
primary. It was explained that there was huge pressure on the Alternative Provision 
Service, pupil numbers were 140% over its capacity.    The costs associated with 
maintaining EHCPs had risen significantly.  The number of children with an EHCP 

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

6 

was 368 more than the number at this time last year (an increase of 11.2%), at an 
estimated cost of £3.68M.  

17.4 The 2019/20 High Needs budget had been set at an in-year deficit of £1.192M.   
There was concern that when this deficit was combined with the deficit total at the 
end of 2018/19, it totalled a High Needs overspend at the end of 2019/20 estimated 
at £4.076M.  

17.5 The Head of Education Strategy and Development explained that the local authority 
was developing a 5-year recovery plan to bring High Needs to an in-year surplus so 
that the deficit could be recovered. The Forum reviewed the High Needs Strategy. 
There were concerns expressed by some members of the Forum that the specialist 
commissioning strategy, a key area of planning for High Needs, was based on data 
which did not reflect the current pupil population in special schools.  This was due 
to some significant changes in identification of primary need in the most recent 
school census.  Members of the Forum emphasised the point that it was critical that 
the data underpinning the strategy was correct, to ensure that the right solutions 
were identified.   Officers agreed to work with the Association of Special School 
Headteachers to examine the data and ensure its accuracy.  
ACTION:  Philip Haslett.

17.6 The Forum noted that the consultation period on the draft specialist commissioning 
strategy would close on 30 June 2019.  

17.7 Officers explained that the core message from the Strategy was that the available 
funding would be utilised to support early identification of need and inclusion.  In 
order to deliver this the Strategy outlined 8 areas of activity that would form the 
action plan for High Needs. The Forum noted the progress update on each of the 8 
activities, as outlined in the report.  

17.8 The Head of Education Strategy and Development explained that all of the 8 
activities were critical in using the funding available to support early identification of 
need and inclusion. However, there were two core drivers: the development of new 
approaches to managing exclusions; and improvement of the graduated pathway 
and EHCP process. Whilst a sustainable budget needed to be achieved, the key 
focus would be on offering a better service for children with additional needs.  The 
Forum agreed that the two core areas would be the priorities for the Schools Forum 
Working Group.  
ACTION: Philip Haslett.

17.9 The Head of Education Strategy and Development emphasised that developing 
solutions successfully relied on effective partnership and collaboration between 
schools and the local authority. He commented that officers would work closely with 
the Schools Forum Working Group in co-designing the solutions.  

17.10 The Forum was informed that the Timpson Review into exclusions and the 
government response had now been published.  A project team with schools and 
Alternative Provision would be established to design and develop new models for 

Page 6



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

7 

supporting early intervention to prevent permanent exclusions and to respond to the 
recommendation of the Timpson review.  The Forum noted that the Project Team 
would report on its recommendations, plans and financial modelling to the Schools 
Forum Working Group, for review and testing, prior to a formal submission and 
recommendation to the Forum.  

17.11 A member raised the point that a percentage of the number of the pupils who had 
been permanently excluded in Gloucestershire, would have been excluded due to a 
serious on-off incident, which was much more challenging to tackle through early 
intervention, than persistent disruptive behaviour.  Elisa Entwistle, Alternative 
Provision representative, added that for many children difficult home lives meant 
support mechanisms were needed in their wider lives not just in education; this was 
key to reducing permanent exclusions.  Further consideration was needed on how 
to involve other sectors.

17.12 Chris Spencer, Director of Children’s Services, commented there was now a 
thousand children being home educated in the county. The authority did not receive 
any funding for those children.    He stressed that there needed to be greater 
challenge to reduce number of those electing to home educate, with a particular 
emphasis on promoting the benefits of school education.  All potential funding 
needed to be gained.

17.13 The Forum was informed that strategies were being reviewed to enable better use 
of the EHCP funding pathway to support earlier intervention and effective use of the 
graduated pathway.  Local Inclusion Clusters would be engaged with to consider 
different funding models.  This would be developed with the Schools Forum 
Working Group, before a recommendation to the Forum. 

17.14 The Forum noted the High Needs Strategy document.    Amanda Horniman, Early 
Years representative, referred to the development and implementation of the 
Restorative Practice programme as outlined in Strategy, and asked whether the 
programme would include Early Years.  It was agreed that officers would consider 
how to engage Early Years in the programme.
ACTION: Philip Haslett.

17.15 The Forum was informed that a key focus of the High Needs Action Plan would be 
on the transition from Early Years to primary school, (e.g. understanding what was 
needed in terms of ‘school readiness’, and the collection of SEND data for use by 
primary schools).  The Head of Education Strategy and Development explained that 
the funding model for Early Years did not currently cater for children with SEND; he 
signalled that SEND support for Early Years would be included in the discussion.  A 
member of the Forum stressed that more structured formal partnerships needed to 
be forged between Early Years and Primary.

17.16 The Forum noted that progress on the High Needs Strategy would be reported to 
schools though ‘Heads Up’, ‘What’s up Gov’, the headteacher associations and 
local school partnerships, and through the schools’ bulletin board.

Page 7



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

8 

18. GLOUCESTERSHIRE SCHOOLS FORUM WORKING GROUP 

18.1 The Forum noted the Schools Forum Working Group’s One Page Strategy which 
set out the Group’s ambitions and how it would operate.  The Forum noted that the 
Group would play an active role in informing, guiding and implementing the 
strategic aims identified in the High Needs Strategy, and it would also explore the 
wider school funding, and Early Years issues and plans.

18.2 The Forum noted the draft notes of the Working Group’s meeting held on 9 May 
2019.  At the meeting held on 9 May, members of the Working Group considered in 
detail the High Needs Strategy and provided feedback to officers ahead of the 
Schools Forum meeting.

19. LOBBYING AND MEDIA - CONTINUING TO RAISE THE PROFILE OF SCHOOL 
FUNDING AND HIGH NEEDS 

19.1 The Forum considered the proposal as outlined in the Lobbying for Funding 
Change report.  The Forum recognised that the planned spending review in 2019 
would be a critical moment for school funding.  It was emphasised that a collective 
effort was needed now to make the case for additional funding for schools and High 
Needs.

19.2 In addition to the work already being undertaken through national campaigns (F40 
and WorthLess?), the Forum recognised the importance of ensuring that everything 
was being done locally to mobilise support, and to gain a clear picture in 
Gloucestershire of the detrimental impact on pupils of the savings schools were 
having to make. 

19.3 The Forum supported the proposal to run a funding event, in each of the 6 
constituencies in Gloucestershire.  The purpose of the event was to bring together 
headteachers, MPs and the Local Authority to discuss and tackle school funding 
issues to ensure there was a common understanding of the issues.  MPs would be 
asked to use the report captured at the event to intensify the discussion in 
Parliament for fairer/better funding for schools.

19.4 It was agreed that the events would be arranged to take place in the Autumn term 
2019.
ACTION: Philip Haslett/Joanne Bolton.

20. SCHOOLS FORUM MEETING DATES 

The Forum noted the future meeting dates as outlined below:

2019
Thursday 19 September
Thursday 14 November

2020

Page 8



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

9 

Thursday 9 January
Thursday 18 June
Thursday 17 September
Thursday 12 November

Meetings will be held in the Cabinet Suite of Shire Hall and will commence at 2pm.

Chairman

Meeting concluded at 4.00 pm

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Schools Forum Meeting on 20 June 2019 
 

Action Sheet 
 
TOPIC 
 
 

 
ACTION 

 
RESPONSIBILITY 

 
OUTCOME 
 

1. Annual 
Review of 
the 
Constitution 

The membership structure of the Schools Forum, to be 
amended to include one additional non-schools 
member ‘a community representative’ to reflect the 
appointment of Andrew Harris. 
 
The Clerk to clarify whether an addition should be 
made to paragraph 1 of the Constitution, to reflect that 
there must be at least one member on the Forum who 
is a representative of the headteachers of academies. 

Joanne Bolton 
 
 
 
 
Joanne Bolton 

Completed.  Constitution and membership 
list updated. 
 
 
 
The text in paragraph 1 of the Constitution 
makes reference to the requirements of the 
Schools Forum (England) Regs 2012 
regarding the membership of the Forum.  
The requirement for the inclusion of 
Academy representatives, including 
headteachers and governors, is covered 
within paragraph 1.1 (a)  of the Constitution: 
‘(a) there must be at least one Academy 
member on a Schools Forum where there 
are Academies in the local authority's area’.   
No amendment is therefore proposed. 
. 

2. Minutes of 
the previous 
meeting  

The Head of SEND to make contact with Clare Steel, 
Special School Headteacher, to provide clarification on 
the number of children who had been allocated a 
special school place in the next academic year.   

 
Elisa Entwistle, Alternative Provision Schools 
representative, asked officers to provide clarification on 
the plans for the pupils, whose named special school in 
their Education Health and Care Plan (EHCP) was 

Philip Haslett 
 
 
 
 
Philip Haslett 

Commissioned places are now agreed with 
all special schools for the academic year 
2019/20. 
 
 
Where a special school has been named on 
an EHCP, but is over-subscribed the SEN 
case work team will work closely with the 
mainstream school to identify reasonable 

P
age 11



oversubscribed.   adjustments that can be made to ensure 
appropriate support is in place. In 
exceptional circumstances, the EHCP 
service manager, with the approval of the 
Head of Service, can commission additional 
places in the school, but this is only done 
when reasonable adjustments cannot be 
made by the mainstream school. 

3. Outturn and 
Maintained 
School 
Balances 

The Finance Manager – Schools Strategy and Capital, 
to seek clarification from the ESFA, on how any clawed 
back surplus funds were allowed to be used, and to 
ascertain if it was permissible for any school balances 
clawed back from mainstream schools, to be used in 
the High Needs block. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Philip Haslett/Neil 
Egles 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Schools Forum and LA have flexibility 
to agree a mechanism for clawing back 
unused school balances from maintained 
schools and to agree how to use any 
funding that is clawed back.  They would 
need to: 

 consult with all schools on the 
proposal, 

 obtain a forum decision following 
consultation, 

 update the GCC scheme for financing 
schools to state what those new 
actions/uses will be. 

 
It is worth noting that “Any mechanism 
should have regard to the principle that 
schools should be moving towards greater 
autonomy, should not be constrained from 
making early efficiencies to support their 
medium-term budgeting in a tighter financial 
climate, and should not be burdened by 
bureaucracy”.  
 
It is also worth noting that there is no 
mechanism to clawback funding from 
Academies and there is currently no 
intention to create one.  

P
age 12



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Deficit Officer Group to involve the school 
governors in its discussions with school headteachers 
and business managers, concerning plans for excess 
surplus.   
 
Information on the budget deficits in maintained 
schools to be shared with the Forum once data 
analysis was complete.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Philip Haslett 
 
 
 
 
Philip Haslett  

 
Recommendation 
Having considered the claw back 
mechanism in more detail, and in order 
to treat all schools equitably and align 
with the view of the DfE that schools 
should be moving towards greater 
autonomy, it is recommended that the 
claw back provision be removed from the 
GCC Scheme for Financing Schools. 
 
Governors are already routinely invited to 
attend deficit meetings. Attendance from 
governors is good and often includes a 
number of governors. 
 
(waiting on finance data from Vicky 
Chapman). 

4.  High Needs Officers to work with the Association of Special School 
Headteachers to examine the data which underpins the 
specialist commissioning strategy, to ensure its 
accuracy. 
 
 
Officers to consider how to engage Early Years in the 
Restorative Practice programme. 
 
The priorities for the Schools Forum Working Group 
will be: the development of new approaches to 
managing exclusions; and improvement of the 
graduated pathway and EHCP process. 

Philip Haslett 
 
 
 
 
 
Philip Haslett 
 
 
 
Philip Haslett 

Officers met with the Association before the 
end of term and agreed to utilise the census 
data.  It was also agreed that we would 
utilise fields for both primary and secondary 
need to inform planning. 
 
Head of Service for Early Years has been 
invited to join the project group and will be 
included in all future planning. 
 
Working group focus for the Autumn will be 
on the development of new approaches to 
managing exclusions, with a view to running 
a pilot in the Spring term. 
 
 

P
age 13



5. Lobbying 
and Media 
– 
Continuing 
to raise the 
profile of 
School 
Funding 
and High 
Needs 

The funding events in each of the six constituencies to 
be arranged to take place in the Autumn Term 2019. 

Philip 
Haslett/Joanne 
Bolton 

Given the recent funding announcements 
we are proposing not to move forward with 
the events as previously planned. 

 

P
age 14



 

1 Introduction 
 

You will be aware that there has been a recent announcement from the government 
regarding the investment of over £14 billion in school funding. This has been 
received very positively by the sector and should go a long way to reversing some of 
the real-terms cuts schools have seen over recent years.  
 
However, the announcement and the associated changes to school funding that are 
required, have meant that the Education Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) have not 
been able to provide us with indicative DSG budgets; changes to the National 
Funding Formula rates; or changes to the Authority Pro-Forma Tool (APT) rules that 

School Funding 2020/21  

Schools’ Forum 
Date 

19th September 2019 

Type of Decision For decision 

Background 
Documents 

30th August 2019 Prime Minister announcement about £14billion 
extra funding Link  

DfE announcement on £30,000 starting salaries for teachers Link  

Chancellor announcement about £400million for 16-19 education.   
Link 

Author Phil Haslett, Head of Education Strategy and Development 

Neil Egles, Finance Manager – Schools Strategy and Capital 

Purpose of Report To seek agreement from the Forum on the 2020/21 growth fund and 

de-delegation amounts and on the basis to use for applying the 

2020/21 formula for Gloucestershire mainstream schools and 

academies 

Key 
Recommendations 

Recommendation 1 

That a top-slice for growth of £1.429m is agreed for 2020/21 subject 

to being updated for any change in the basic need AWPU rates for 

2020/21. 

 

Recommendation 2 

That de-delegation is agreed at the per pupil rates shown for: 

 targeted intervention (primary) 

 union facilities (primary) 

 In-year increase in pupil numbers (primary) 

 local authority statutory duties (primary and secondary) 

Resource 
Implications 

Funding announcements relate to increases in DSG funding and 
teachers pension grant. Exact amounts for Gloucestershire have not 
yet been announced. 

Page 15

Agenda Item 6

https://schoolfinancialsuccess.us13.list-manage.com/track/click?u=6262ca36ac03845f346f25913&id=54ca847a3b&e=dc8e04b92f
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/30000-starting-salaries-proposed-for-teachers
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/chancellor-announces-400-million-investment-for-16-19-year-olds-education


LAs have to follow when submitting their school budget formulas. It is anticipated that 
further information on these will be received in October 2019 in time for an update to 
be presented at the 14th November 2019 schools forum meeting.  
 
Final DSG figures and actual data for 2020/21 should then be received by the 
authority in December 2019 in time for the schools forum to agree the final formula at 
its 9th January 2020 meeting. 
 
However, we are able to make decisions on the amount of the growth funding that 
we wish to allocate and the de-delegations for 2020/21. 
 
2 Government Announcements 
 
On the 30th August 2019 the DfE announced that the Prime Minister will invest over 
£14 billion in primary and secondary education between now and 2022/23. The 
funding package for 5-16 schools includes £2.6 billion for 2020/21, £4.8 billion for 
2021/22, and £7.1 billion for 2022/23 compared to 2019/20. 
 
The Institute of Fiscal Studies (IFS) has said this should be sufficient to reverse cuts 
to schools of 8% over the past decade. 
 
The announcement outlined a number of commitments: 

 To increase the minimum funding level for secondary school pupils £5,000 
per pupil in 2020/21 

 To increase the minimum funding levels for primary school pupils to £4,000 
per in 2021/22 

 In addition to this package, schools will receive £4.4billion over three years 
to cover rising pension costs and ensure they can focus their resources on 
the front line 

 The investment of £700 million extra for children with SEND in 2020/21 

 Salaries for new teachers can rise to £30,000 by 2022-23 

 An additional £400 million of funding for 16-19 education providers such as 
further education and sixth form colleges. 

 £66m for early years, targeted at increasing the hourly rate paid in 
nurseries. 

 
Subsequently and just prior to publication of the papers, we have received further 
details from the ESFA.  This includes: 
 

 Confirmation of the government’s intention to work closely with LAs, schools 

and others on a move to a ‘hard’ National Funding Formula (NFF) for 

schools where budgets will be set on the basis of a single national formula. 

 In 2020-21 LAs in consultation with schools and the schools forum will 

continue to have discretion over the allocations in their schools funding 

formulae with the exception of the minimum funding levels (MFL) for schools 

Page 16



which the government have announced as a partial move to a hard formula 

must be set at the NFF levels. 

 The previous announcement confirmed the MFLs would be £5,000 (an 

increase of £200) for secondary schools in 2020-21 and £4,000 (an increase 

of £500) a year later for primary schools in 2021-22. The latest 

announcement now states that the primary MFL will also increase next year 

and be set at £3,750 (an increase of £250) in 2020-21. These rates will be 

compulsory for LAs to use. 

 Teachers Pay Grant and  teachers pension employer contributions grant will 

continue to be paid separate from the NFF in 2020-21 with rates that 

determine the allocations due to be published shortly. 

The NFF will also change as follows: 

 There will be no gains CAP so schools attract their full core allocations in 

the formulae. 

 Minimum Funding Guarantee (MFG) must be set between +0.5% and 

1.84% (in 2019-20 this was between -1.5% and +0.5%) 

 The funding floor will be set at 1.84% per pupil when 2020-21 allocations 

are compared to individual school’s 2019/20 allocations. 

 The core NFF factors will increase by 4%. 

 The free school meal factor will increase at inflation. 

 Premises funding will increase based on actual spend. 

 The mobility factor will be based on a formula rather than on the basis of 

historic spend 

The provisional Dedicated Schools Grant which will identify the funding pot available 

to Gloucestershire and individual NFF values needed to calculate indicative 

individual school budgets, will not be issued by the DfE until October 2019 and Final 

values issued in December 2019. 

 
3 Growth 
 
The growth fund is used to provide age weighted pupil unit (AWPU) funding for new 
classes required as a result of a shortage of basic need places, along with start up 
costs for any new schools opening in the year. On current information and using the 
2019/20 Basic Need AWPU rates, the growth fund needed for 2020/21 is £1.429m, 
an increase of £0.367m from 2019/20. 
The growth fund is topsliced from the schools block DSG and the rest of the schools 
block is then delegated to schools through the schools funding formula.  

Page 17



 
Recommendation 1: That a top-slice for growth of £1.429m is agreed for 
2020/21 subject to being updated for any change in the basic need AWPU rates 
for 2020/21. 
  
4 De-delegations 
 
Decision-making on de-delegations rests with maintained school representatives of 
the forum only and decisions need to be made separately for each phase. 
 
Deductions are made from the formula allocations for maintained schools only.  The 
aggregate total for each de-delegated budget changes each year to reflect both 
changes in maintained pupil numbers and reductions due to further academy 
conversions. 

 
4.1 In-year increases in pupil numbers at primary schools 

 
The Forum has reviewed the policy and threshold levels in each of the last three 
years and agreed to allocate additional funding to primary schools where the 
following conditions are met: 
 
Where the increase in October School Census numbers exceeds the higher of 5% or 
10 pupils (the 5% threshold is subject to a ceiling of 15 pupils) then 7/12 of the Basic 
Entitlement (Age Weighted Pupil Unit) pupil allocation will be triggered for each pupil 
above this threshold. 
 

The rate per pupil for this has remained unchanged at £10.53 for a number of years 
now and despite the budget overspending in 2015/16 it was underspent in the 3 
years 2016/17 to 2018/19. The average underspend across the last 4 years was 21% 
and it is therefore proposed that the rate charged to primary maintained schools is 
reduced by this same percentage which will reduce the rate to £8.32 for 2020/21. 
 

 
4.2 Union Facilities-Primary 
 
A report summarising the use of facilities time funding in 2018/19 is attached at 
Annex A. 
 
 
4.3 LA statutory duties-Primary and Secondary 
 
The regulations continue to provide for LAs to retain some of their maintained 
schools’ DSG in an arrangement akin to de-delegation to cover statutory duties 
(primarily budgeting, accounting and internal audit, administration of pensions and a 
range of other HR duties and landlord responsibilities on buildings) that relate to 
maintained schools only.   
 
 
 
 

Page 18



4.4 The de-delegation rates to apply in 2020/21 
 
In summary the relevant phase maintained school representatives on the Forum are 
asked to consider agreeing deductions, from the budgets of maintained schools only, 
for the functions listed in the table below. 
 
Items 1 to 3 cover the primary maintained sector only and item 4 covers both the 
primary and secondary maintained sectors. Those eligible to vote are shown against 
each de-delegation proposal. 
 

 De-delegation 
proposal 

Eligible to vote Estimated Budgets based on current 
maintained schools and October 
2018 census numbers. (Will be 

updated for October 2019 census) 
Primary 35,421 

Secondary 3,881 

   Per pupil 
Rate £ 

Total 
£000 

1 In-year 
increases in 
pupil numbers 
– primary 
 

Lisa Jones 

David Metcalf 

Dan Johnson  

Brian Bartlett 

Sara Byrne 

Matthew Bishop 

8.32 295 

2 Targeted 
intervention - 
primary 

Lisa Jones 

David Metcalf 

Dan Johnson  

Brian Bartlett 

Sara Byrne 

Matthew Bishop 

9.27 

 

328 

3 Union facilities 
- primary 

Lisa Jones 

David Metcalf 

Dan Johnson  

Brian Bartlett 

3.05 108 

Page 19



Sara Byrne 

Matthew Bishop 

4 Local authority 
statutory duties 
-primary and 
secondary 
 
 

Lisa Jones 

David Metcalf 

Dan Johnson  

Brian Bartlett 

Sara Byrne 

Matthew Bishop 
 
Colin Belford 
 
Adam White  

5.00 197 

 

Recommendation 2 

That de-delegation is agreed at the per pupil rates shown for: 

 in-year increases in pupil numbers (primary)  

 targeted intervention (primary) 

 union facilities (primary) 

 local authority statutory duties (primary and secondary) 
 
 
 

Page 20



Local Authority Teaching Union Facilities 2019 Report for Schools’ Forum 

Overview 

LA facilities time allows teaching unions to provide Gloucestershire schools access 

to effective statutory and collective consultation, bargaining and individual 

representation from trained and accredited local teaching union officials. 

Consequently, school leaders and managers also have access to a valuable resource 

in the resolution of workplace issues and disputes. 

This allows LA schools to meet all statutory and procedural entitlements to union 

representation, which include: 

• capability 

• grievance 

• disciplinaries 

• long term absence 

• pay and grading appeals 

• redundancy and restructuring consultations (all relevant unions) 

• equality and discrimination issues  

• introduction of new or revised policies and procedures 

• health and safety issues 

It also allows local officers to respond to the large proportion of queries for 

informal advice from members, via phone and email, which result in issues being 

dealt with without having to involve the school or without escalation to any formal 

procedure. We strongly believe that this de-escalation saves head teachers a 

substantial amount of time and helps to enhance school cohesiveness. 

To enable a certified union representative to be available, facilities time allows for: 

• time off for relevant training 

• time to prepare for the meeting 

• travel time 

• “follow up” time 

Elected County Union representatives – currently Tony Chong (TC) (NASUWT) 

and Sarah Murphy (SM) (NEU) 

County representatives are trained in current employment law and related matters, 

have an excellent working knowledge of procedures and have considerable 

experience in bringing matters to a speedy conclusion, resolving disputes. They 

also have an understanding of how disputes and employee issues have been 

resolved in a mutually acceptable way elsewhere in the county. This expertise is 

supported by high-level regular training arranged and funded by the respective 

Annex A

Page 21



teacher unions (not by facilities funding). They have access to resources, 

colleagues and solicitors at regional and national level who provide information 

and advice on policy and professional matters and on employment relations issues. 

What are the implications of not buying this service? 

Without this service LA schools would be responsible for meeting all statutory 

obligations (eg individual right to representation and legal obligation to consult on 

redundancies and staff changes) from their own budget. Schools would be taking 

on responsibility for agreeing, co-ordinating and paying for release time and paid 

time off for duties and training of their own school-based reps. 

This release would be in addition to the normal training required by School 

Representatives and would need to replicate the training undertaken by County 

representatives to enable those functions to be fulfilled at school level rather than 

through the buy-in scheme.  

This would be necessary if the school is to meet its statutory obligations in respect 

of trade union duties for which money is delegated to schools through the funding 

formula. The cost of training school reps to this level would, however, be 

considerably greater than that of the current facilities arrangements. In addition, 

these trained school-based reps would have to be released from lessons to provide 

the support required by their colleagues. 

LA facilities funding pays for the availability of county representatives to respond 

to schools’ issues. All other areas of trade union work and representation are paid 

for by member subscriptions. With minor variations, this is the same for all 

recognised teacher unions including the Headteacher associations. Some examples 

of work paid for by subscriptions are: 

• Regional staffing team including regional officials who undertake serious 

and high-level case work (eg NCTL cases, exam malpractice, employment 

tribunal cases). 

• Legal advice and support including solicitor teams 

• Campaigning and policy work – locally, regionally and nationally 

• National telephone advice line for all members and reps to access seven 

days a week 

• Website advice and resources 

• Workplace reps training programme 

• Advance training programmes for county representatives 

• CPD programmes and courses for members 

NEU and NASUWT Gloucestershire officials (TC and SM) receive paid release 

time from this funding to provide advice, support and representation (a summary to 

follow). The time is allocated on the basis of the respective membership of each 

Page 22



union in the county. We promote and maintain partnership working, best practice 

and consistency across the county. We work with schools and academies to 

facilitate early resolution of difficulties to reduce the risk of disputes or legal 

claims. TC and SM work collaboratively within schools in many instances. 

How facilities time was spent in 2018-2019 by NEU and NASUWT 

Report for Schools' Forum by Sarah Murphy (District and Branch Secretary 

Gloucestershire NEU) 

From September 2018 I have been carrying out casework on behalf of National 

Education Union Members for 3.5 days per week funded through Union Facilities 

Time. Membership total (on 3/9/19) 4756. 

We currently have 97 Work Place Representatives (Reps) who have also supported 

their colleagues in schools. 

I receive casework via our AdviceLine, our Regional Office and direct from 

members. During the past year I have supported teaching assistants, HLTAs, 

teachers (including supply), TLR holders, assistant head teachers and head 

teachers. I have also represented support staff including librarians and an IT 

manager.  

The analysis below pulls together data from AdviceLine referrals and direct email 

contact from members. It is not definitive because I support a substantial number 

of members (100+) in ‘one off’ contacts via the phone and email whose queries I 

can answer immediately and therefore whose issues do not become a substantive 

piece of casework. 

Breakdown of cases: 

• Disciplinary 12 

• Sickness/ R to W/ absence  19 

• Restructuring/ Redundancies   25 

• Flexible working   8 

• Grievance   2 

• Capability   14 

• Contract Issues   4 

• Other   18 

Total 102 

 

 

Page 23



Educational Institution: 

Primary 36, Secondary 17, Independent 10, FE 2, APS/Special School 8, Advisory 

Teacher service 2 

There have been eleven collective cases centering on redundancies, restructuring 

and withdrawal from the TPS. 

It is important to recognise that as union representatives and caseworkers we see it 

as a priority to resolve issues within education settings swiftly and constructively 

for all those involved. We visit schools to speak to members on a collective and 

individual basis, members contact us directly by email on a daily basis, we speak 

over the phone and meet with members out of school. 

Advice is sought via email from us 24 hours a day with the nature of the query or 

incident being completely unpredictable. Our role will often involve ‘coaching’ 

with the result that teachers return to the classroom ready to teach again without 

the headteacher probably even being aware that their staff member had a concern. 

NASUWT Gloucestershire Federation - NASUWT is a Lay Led Association. 

Report for 2018 to 2019 by Tony Chong (Gloucestershire Federation and 

Negotiating Secretary and Local Association Secretary for Gloucester 

Severnside) 

An Accredited Caseworker with two days a week funded through Union Facility 

Time.  

From September 2018 a second colleague receiving one day a fortnight has been 

included due to the ever- increasing amount and complexity of casework in 

Gloucestershire. 

Work Placed Representatives have also contributed to supporting member 

colleagues. 

Nature of work: The face and voice of NASUWT in Gloucestershire, providing a 

point of contact for members - regardless of their setting - concerning every aspect 

of their present and possible future working conditions and pay as qualified 

professional educators. 

The benefits of the role to members: For members the benefits are many but 

crucially it is having an easily contactable local point of contact with a person who 

has an in-depth understanding and knowledge of the Gloucestershire Education 

landscape. That contact is then in turn able to access the expertise and knowledge 

of a National professional organisation dedicated solely for Teachers. 

Page 24



Individual cases: During the period 1st April 2018 to 31st March 2019, some 

seventy-five individual member cases [an increase of 20% from last reporting 

period] were supported and they were from across educational settings.  

The following list indicates the type of educational institutions members worked.  

Secondary  14      Independent Schools 3 

Primary             7    Special Schools  3 

Infant   4    Further Education 2    

Gloucestershire LEA [Advisory Teachers Service and Alternative Provision] 2  

Gloucestershire Alternative Provision  2 

This Casework ranged from – redundancies arising from internal re-organisations 

prompted by financial pressures, parental complaints, staff grievances, Directed 

Time Calendar – not being made available or indeed completed, Maternity Leave, 

Performance Management, and latterly specifically the implementation of 

increased employer contributions to the T.P.S. [Teachers’ Pension Scheme] 

through to implementation of NASUWT’s Action Short of Strike Action. 

In addition some one hundred and sixty eight ‘one off’ member contacts were 

made an increase of almost 20% from last year. 

Collective Cases:  Nine 

Two cases concerned - redundancy proposals and procedures 

Two cases concerned – New School policies [ Performance Management / 

Appraisal] 

Five cases concerned – possible withdrawal from T.P.S 

General Policy requests: Ten - these have included areas such as: Pay 

Progression, Performance Management, Redundancy, Attendance and 

Competency. 

Mr. A. Chong      17th July  2019 

On behalf of thousands of workers in education across Gloucestershire, we 

ask Schools’ Forum to vote for facilities funding to be de-delegated for 2019-

20.  

Many thanks Sarah and Tony 

Page 25



 

 

 

Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



 

High Needs Report  

Schools’ Forum 
Date 

20th June 2019 

Type of Decision For decision 

Background 
Documents 

High Needs Strategy 

Authors Philip Haslett, Head of Education Strategy and Development 

Purpose of Report  To provide an update on the year to date high needs budget  

 To update and receive feedback from the Schools Forum on the 

High Needs strategy and associated activities. 

Key 
Recommendations 

 That there will be no discussion regarding a transfer from the 

schools block until further details of the new funding is available. 

Resource 
Implications 

The High Needs Block is in a deficit position, with a deficit carry 
forward of £2.88m from 2018/19 and an in-year forecast of £4.26m, 
total of £7.14m. 

Page 29

Agenda Item 7



1. High Needs Budget 

The high needs block is continuing to come under significant financial pressure. As at the 

end of July 2019 the forecast for the year is showing a further £3.07m overspend after 

setting a deficit budget of £1.19m.  This increases the in-year deficit to £-4.26m and the total 

predicted deficit including the carry forward from 2018/19 to £-7.1m. The current forecast for 

2019/20 is shown below. 

High Needs Block 
 

Budget Actual Variance 

  
£000 £000 £000 

Alternative provision - places & top ups  
 

5,647 5,732 85 

Alternative provision - Glos Hospital Education 
 

1,619 1,645 26 

EHCP Costs - College and FE 
 

3,961 4,592 630 

EHCP Costs - Early Years 
 

166 166 0 

EHCP Costs - Primary 
 

6,522 6,722 200 

EHCP Costs - Secondary 
 

3,662 3,762 100 

Excluded pupils 
 

0 -78 -78 

LA Services and staffing 
 

3,376 3,528 152 

Independent Special Schools 
 

10,727 12,092 1,365 

Restorative Practice 
 

200 195 -5 

Special Centres 
 

488 492 4 

Special school provision 
 

16,602 17,262 660 

Support Services 
 

1,263 1,198 -65 

Virtual School 
 

610 610 0 

High Needs Unallocated 
 

-1,258 -66 1,192 

Recoupment 
 

6,351 6,351 0 

  
59,936 64,202 4,266 

 

    
 

You will note from the variance column there are three budget lines that are significantly 

overspending: EHCP costs for FE and Colleges; Independent Special School places; and 

special school places are a significant element of this (£2.65m).   

2. What is driving the overspend? 

As discussed in the June Schools Forum this increased cost is driven by the continued rise 

in the number of EHCPs in the system..  

An analysis of the most recent figures from the Office for National Statistics (ONS) 2018/9 

shows a 47% increase in the number of children in receipt of EHCPs since 2015.  The same 

data shows Gloucestershire’s increase at 50.85%.  This significant rise contrasts starkly 

against the previous 4 years (2010-14), in which there was a 4% rise in SEN statements. 

This significant rise is attributed to a number of changes and pressures.  The first and most 

important of which are the changes to the code of practice which:  

Page 30



 extended the age range to include 19-25 year olds, moving responsibility for these 

children and young people from adult services to children’s services.  The cost of 

provision for 19-25 years olds is £3.1m this financial year. 

 raised expectations of parents of children with SEND about the level of support that 

their child should receive as part of a state-funded education. 

Secondly we are seeing an increasing complexity and depth of need in children and young 

people, which is increasing number of EHCPs but due to the increasing complexity also 

increasing the average cost of an EHCP. 

Finally the increasing pressure on school budgets means that schools are less equipped and 

have reduced staffing to support children with additional needs and therefore seeking 

funding via an EHCP. 

3. What are we doing to reduce cost and improve the service? 

At the Schools Forum in June we reviewed the high needs strategy and the key activities 

that are being delivered to reduce costs and improve the services available to children and 

young people. Outlined below are progress updates on key areas of activity. 

3.1. Reducing Permanent Exclusion and cost of Alternative Provision 

Work being done to reduce exclusion has been effective.  In 2018/19 the work of the 

inclusion service and the restorative practice team contributed towards an 18% reduction in 

permanent exclusions.  Support and intervention from the inclusion service avoided 80 

permanent exclusions, which would have cost High Needs at least £1m.   

We are continuing to invest and support the roll out of restorative practice to schools across 

the county.  So far this academic year we have trained 6 schools and 2 children’s centres, a 

total of almost 400 Education staff. Following a period of research and evidence gathering, 

we are working on a more robust training offer for schools that includes Trauma as a Core 

element of the approach not just an add on.  

We are also continuing to refine the ‘Team Around the School model’ and are looking at how 

this links to the Local Inclusion Clusters.  

The reduction in exclusions, coupled with a more straight forward funding model and 

reorganisations and improvements made by the AP schools has ensured the Alternative 

Provision budget is in a significantly better position compared to last 2018/19 when there 

was a £1m overspend.  

As discussed in the June Forum plans to develop a devolved funding model are underway.  

We are currently exploring:  

 How the devolution of funding to schools could work, including how schools provide 

peer challenge and support. 

 What is the impact for the commissioned AP service and what will we need to 

commission in the future.  

Initial proposals and options will be brought to the working group for review and challenge. 

We are aiming to pilot an approach in the new calendar year, so that we are in a position to 

implement fully in the next academic year. 

Page 31



3.2. Specialist Commissioning  

The strategy outlines our intention to  build and open a new11-16  special school for children 

and young people with Social, Emotional and Mental Health needs (SEMH)  special school 

in 2022; this will meet a rising SEMH need that is currently being met by independent special 

schools.  When it is fully operating at commissioned numbers we predict this will save in the 

region of £1.5m per annum. 

Even though the independent special school budget is continuing to rise the specialist 

commissioning team are continuing to negotiate with independent special schools to reduce 

placement costs.  Savings in 18/19 were calculated at nearly £1m and we are seeing similar 

levels of saving this year. 

The team are developing a new banding system that uses both the Resource Allocation 

System (RAS) and the required provision.  The intention is that this will work across 

mainstream and special schools. We plan to start sharing the draft with colleagues, 

SENDCOs and Special Heads during September. 

3.3. Early Years 

We have developed (in draft and out for consultation) an Early Years (EY) to Primary 

transition guide that outlines how the EY provider and receiving school can work together to 

support good transitions especially for children with identified additional needs.  We have 

developed a “school ready” information leaflet for EY practitioners and parents.  This aims to 

provide some consistency around what we expect children to be able to do/demonstrate 

before they start in Reception and in year one and some guidance for parents about what 

they can help their child to practice before they start school. 

We have a DfE funded project in place in Gloucester City providing an early help pathway for 

children aged 0-3 yrs who have been identified as presenting or at risk of language, 

communication, interaction difficulties. We are in the process of setting up a second DfE 

funded project, The Professional Development programme, this will provide training for a 

cohort of EY setting practitioners to help to develop their skills and confidence around 

supporting children with communication/language difficulties. 

We are in conversation with speech and language therapy and Health visiting colleagues to 

consider how we develop a consistent speech, language and communication pathway to 

facilitate language/communication assessment of all 2 year olds accessing EY provision. 

The EY service have reviewed and amended their programme of training for EY practitioners 

based on an analysis of the requests for support received in relation to both individual 

children and general setting practice support. There will be a stronger focus on SENCO 

training and training specifically around managing behaviour and  how behaviour links with 

communication/interaction difficulties. 

We have had a strong focus over the past 8 months looking at our EYFS performance and 

have been working with Reception teachers to ensure that they are confident in making 

accurate EYFS judgements.  Preliminary EYFS data for 2019 indicates that for the first time 

in years the % of children achieving the expected levels (good level of development GLD)  in 

Gloucestershire  matches the National average.  Last year we were 2.4% below the natioanl 

average and this has been the picture for many years.  We will continue to work closely with 

Page 32



EY settings and receiving schools to ensure that this performance data continues to 

improve. 

In acknowledgement of the benefits, in terms of supporting cognitive, emotional and social 

development , of children accessing their entitlement of EY Education, we have been 

working hard to increase the % of eligible children who take up the EY offer, especially those 

eligible for 2 year old funding.  We have seen an increase from 71% to 72.8% since January, 

this is now higher than the England average (68%) and whilst still below the average for the 

SW region (75%), the gap is closing.  We have an action plan in place to further increase the 

2 year old take up. 

3.4. Post-16 

During 2018/19, a transition panel model was piloted, alongside Gloucestershire College, 

with a group of 4 schools; Cleeve, Barnwood Park, Pittville and Tewkesbury.  The model 

replicates one that has been successfully implemented in Somerset, which has produced 

excellent outcomes for young people in supporting them with the transition at Year 11 into 

post 16 education. 

The schools, colleges and support agencies involved felt the process to be very positive.  

The following feedback from Gloucestershire College encapsulates the purpose of the 

transition panels. 

The benefits of this approach are: 

 

 We get insights into some of the care / safeguarding needs for the students so we 

can ensure support is in place from day one 

 The knowledge on the student enables us to better prepare the staff to ‘manage’ 

those students when they are here 

 For those who are anxious we can support pre enrolment with transitioning through 

tasters and managed visits 

 We also will have formed relationships with the key contacts in the school so we can 

feedback how they are getting on/ if they don’t turn up etc. so there is a joined up 

approach to supporting these vulnerable young people 

Following on from the success of the pilot, the transition panels are being rolled out across 

county involving Stroud and Cirencester Colleges, in addition to Gloscol, and their key 

feeder schools. There will be panel meetings in October, February and June. 

A special school/college working group met last term to scope out a pilot for a similar model 

for special school students.  A pilot panel is planned for November 5th involving Milestone, 

Alderman Knight and The Shrubberies along with the colleges, social care, casework, SCT 

and the travel team. 

A survey of careers leads is planned for the Autumn to help us to understand what support 

they would find helpful in delivering their careers strategy. 

 

 

Page 33



3.5. Funding EHCPs 

As discussed in the June Forum meeting the sustainable change that we need will only 

come from transforming the way that we approach the funding for EHCPs, so that we can 

provide intervention and support earlier and more flexibly.  

Currently an EHCP is the only way to access high needs funding for children with additional 

needs.  This is encouraging applications for an EHCP, which in many cases is not necessary 

and ultimately costs more time and money for all involved.   

The aim is to develop a model that makes funding available to schools in a more accessible 

way; that provides earlier support to children and young people; and that does not lock us 

into an expensive, restrictive and time consuming statutory process.  

We are currently researching models that are being used elsewhere so that we can develop 

options for the working group to look at in the new year.  This will need to link to the banding 

work that is being undertaken by the specialist commissioning team. 

4. Additional Funding 

The recent funding announcement identified £700m additional funding for SEND in 20/21.  It 

is not clear how the DfE intends to allocate this funding and whether all of it is destined for 

High Needs. The previous announcement by Damien Hinds in December 17 allocated 

£350m to support SEND of which £250M went to High Needs.  Gloucestershire received 1% 

of this allocation 2.5m spread over two years (this is the final year of that funding).  

If the funding is apportioned to High Needs in a similar way to 2017, we could expect to 

receive around £5m. If all £700m was allocated to High Needs we could expect to receive 

around £7m.   

However, this would not be a panacea. The funding announcement only allocated additional 

SEND funding for one year and whilst we might expect this to continue, it is by no means 

guaranteed.   

Should the additional funding arrive at either of the levels outlined above this would provide 

us with respite to implement the High Needs Strategy, whilst bringing the budget back into 

balance and starting to recover the accumulated deficit.  

Recommendation: That there will be no discussion regarding a transfer from the schools 

block until further details of the new funding is available. 

Page 34



 

1 Capital Spend. 

The revised annual budget for the 2019/20 Children & Families capital programme is 

£28.015 million.  The financial year spend as at the end of July 2019 was £5.616 million. 

 

The 2019/20 Children & Families Capital Programme, was approved by County Council on 

13th February 2019.  A copy of the programme is shown below. The overall budget for the 

programme is £45,163 million and is funded from Basic Need and School Condition Grant 

from central government, Section 106 contributions secured from housing developments and 

school contributions. 

 

2019/20 Capital Programme 

Scheme Name Budget

School 

Contribution

S106 

Contribution

Basic Need 

Grant

School Condition 

Allocation

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Capital Maintenance Programme 19/20 2,875 575 0 0 2,300

Miscellaneous property works 700 0 0 700 0

Bishops Cleeve area primary places 8,000 0 0 8,000 0

Bourton-on-the-Water Primary expansion 1,000 0 0 1,000 0

St. David's Primary expansion 1,500 0 1,200 300 0

Slimbridge Primary expansion 350 0 0 350 0

Tidenham area primary provision 1,500 0 0 1,500 0

Warden Hill Primary expansion 5,500 0 0 3,000 2,500

Winchcombe Abbey Primary expansion 1,500 0 0 1,500 0

Winchcombe area primary provision 4,000 0 0 4,000 0

Cheltenham Secondary growth 700 0 0 700 0

The Cotswold School expansion 3,500 0 0 3,500 0

Winchcombe Secondary expansion 2,000 0 119 1,881 0

Specialist Provision 5,000 0 0 5,000 0

Basic Need Provision 19/20 1,500 0 0 1,500 0

Basic Need Grant 2020/21 5,441 0 0 5,441 0

Schools Condition Allocation 2019/20 97 0 0 0 97

Total Children & Families 45,163 575 1,319 38,372 4,897

Funding

 
 

Education Capital  

Schools’ Forum 
Date 

19th September 2019 

Type of Decision For information 

Background 
Documents 

 N/A 

Author Gareth Vine 

Purpose of Report To update the Forum 

Key 
Recommendations 

That the position be noted 

 

Resource 
Implications 

Total grant value for the 2018/19 Children and Families Capital 
Programmes is £33,320 million 

Page 35

Agenda Item 8



 

 

2. New SEMH Special School 

 

Gloucestershire County Council’s Draft SEND Commissioning Strategy 2019-24, arising 

from the Council’s High Needs Strategy identifies the need for additional special school 

places for children and young people with Social Emotional and Mental Health (SEMH) 

needs. To enable the local authority to provide high quality school places for children and 

young people with SEMH needs locally, the local authority is planning to provide a new 

purpose built facility offering 75 places.  The proposal for the new school will be considered 

at the next Cabinet meeting on October 9th.  If approved, this will reduce the Council’s 

reliance on the Independent/non-maintained special school sector, saving an estimated £1.5 

million annually in placements costs and £360,000 in transport costs.  

 

The estimated cost of providing the new school including the site and external areas is £7.5 

million.  Within the approved Children and Families capital programme there is an approved 

allocation of £5 million identified for specialist provision.  It is proposed that this funding is 

combined with £2.5 million from the DfE grant of Specialist Provision Capital, which is 

intended for improving the quality and range of provision for children and young people with 

SEND, to enable delivery of this new SEMH Special School.  

 

The local authority will need to run a free school presumption competition.  This would 

involve inviting DfE approved Sponsor Trusts to apply to the local authority to run the new 

SEMH special free school.  While the local authority would be responsible for organising and 

running the selection process, it then makes a recommendation on a preferred sponsor to 

the Secretary of State (RSC) who makes the final decision.   

 

It is expected that a presumption competition will be run later in the Autumn, a sponsor 

appointed in the Spring and the new school taking pupils during the academic year 2021/22. 

 

3. Basic Need Update 

 

There continues to be pressure within the school system to ensure there are sufficient school 

places available across the county.  There is still a need to provide additional places within 

the primary sector with new capital schemes being developed looking to provide around 150 

permanent Reception places and 30 temporary places over the next 3 years.  There is also a 

growing need to provide additional Secondary places to meet the rising demand moving 

through from the primary sector and from new housing developments.   

 

4. Cheltenham Secondary School 

 

Plans for the new 900 place secondary school in Cheltenham are progressing.  The planning 

aplication for the Balcarras Academy Trust sponsored provision was submitted in July 

seeking consent to build the new school on land off Farm Lane in Leckhampton.  The new 

school is proposed to open for September 2021 for pupils in Year 7 only so the school meets 

the increasing numbers coming through from the primary phase without taking in-year places 

from existing schools in the area.  Further information can be found at 

Page 36



https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/education-and-learning/school-planning-and-

projects/cheltenham-school-places/school-places-in-cheltenham/   

 

4. New Free School Bids 

 

The Wave 14 Free School bidding round closes on 11th November 2019. It is anticipated 

that there will be bids for both primary and secondary new schools submitted and the 

outcome will be announced in Spring 2020.    

 

 

Page 37

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/education-and-learning/school-planning-and-projects/cheltenham-school-places/school-places-in-cheltenham/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/education-and-learning/school-planning-and-projects/cheltenham-school-places/school-places-in-cheltenham/


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Action sheet 20 June 2019

	6 School Funding 2020/21
	Annex A Teaching Union Facilities 2019 Report - Schools Forum
	Letter from Teaching Unions

	7 High Needs
	8 Education Capital

